

BYLAWS OF THE TRUSTEES OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WYOMING

The ByLaws of the Trustees were adopted pursuant to authority granted to the Trustees by the Wyoming Legislature and in accordance with the Wyoming Constitution. The ByLaws are about the Trustees and how the Trustees organize and carry out their meetings. Additionally, the existence of Trustee Regulations is established and the appointment of the President of the University and his/her authority is set forth.

BYLAWS OF THE TRUSTEES OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WYOMING

Republished Edition May 12, 2022

Article I. STATUTORY CREATION AND AUTHORITY

Section 1-1. APPOINTMENT, TERM AND AUTHORITY

In accordance with the laws of the State of Wyoming (Wyo. Stat. §§21-17-201 et seq), the government of the University of Wyoming is vested in a board of twelve (12) trustees appointed by the governor, with the advice and consent of the senate, for a six year term, with terms to be staggered.

For purposes of these Bylaws, “Trustees,” “Board” and “Board of Trustees” shall be defined as the 12 individual trustees appointed by the governor and may be used interchangeably throughout these Bylaws.

Section 1-2. EX OFFICIO MEMBERS

The Governor of the State of Wyoming, the President of the University of Wyoming, the State Superintendent of Public Instruction, the Director of the Wyoming Community College Commission, and the President of the Associated Students of the University of Wyoming are ex officio members of the Trustees, as such having the right to speak, but not to vote.

For purposes of these Bylaws, these members shall be defined as “ex officio members.”

Section 1-3. VACANCIES

Any vacancy in the membership of the Trustees shall be filled in accordance with laws pertaining thereto.

Article II. MEETINGS OF THE TRUSTEES

Section 2-1. REGULAR MEETINGS

The annual meeting of the Trustees shall be held at the time of the meeting that is held closest to the regular Spring Commencement. At the annual meeting, the Trustees may set their schedule of regular meetings for the ensuing year and the final UW Board of Trustees' Annual Schedule of Items to Approve, Discuss or Report for the ensuing year in a form similar to that attached hereto and made a part hereof by this reference, but with such modifications as a majority of the Board may approve. After approval, a copy of the UW Board of Trustees' Annual Schedule of Items to Approve, Discuss or Report shall be posted on the Trustees' website annually. Written notice of all regular meetings shall be given by the President of the University to each Trustee and ex officio member at least ten (10) days in advance of the meeting. Attendance by Trustees or ex officio members at regular meetings can be in person or by electronic media.

Meeting Agendas for UW Board of Trustees shall be developed from three sources:

First: Those matters listed as monthly topics for each month's meeting shall be listed on the Trustees' Agenda for the month as set forth herein.

Second: Items requested by a Trustee in writing or during that period of time allocated allowing any Trustee to raise a topic of their choice for placement on the Agenda and approved by the Chairman of the Board.

Third: Items requested from Administration for placement on the Agenda and approved by the Chairman of the Board with input from the Executive Committee.

Prior to preparing a draft agenda, consultation will be had with the Board Chairman to assure the Board Chairman is fully engaged in the development of all Board Agendas. A preliminary draft agenda will be developed far enough in advance so as to allow compliance with the posting time frames set out on the next paragraph, but also allowing sufficient time for the President of the University and the Executive Committee to review and provide appropriate input.

While exceptions can be made if necessary, Administration is expected to have any topics it wishes to present to the Board in open or executive session at the next meeting in a form allowing all final materials relative to that topic, together with both the open and executive session minutes from the previous meeting, to be uploaded to the Trustees' website at least two weekends/over ten (10) days prior to the next scheduled meeting.

Section 2-2. SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings of the Trustees may be called by the Chairman of the Trustees, or by any three Trustees, at such time and place as they may deem expedient, and a majority of said Trustees shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business; but a smaller number may adjourn from time to time. Notice of special meetings shall be given to each Trustee and ex officio member at least eight (8) hours in advance of such meeting. Attendance by Trustees or ex officio members at special meetings can be in person or by electronic media.

Section 2-3. ACTION IN REGULAR AND SPECIAL MEETINGS

At all regular and special meetings, it shall be valid to act on any subject within the power of the corporation except as provided elsewhere in these Bylaws.

Section 2-4. PLACE OF MEETINGS

All meetings of the Trustees shall be held at the University of Wyoming, unless otherwise ordered by the Trustees.

Section 2-5. REPEALED

Section 2-6. ACT OF THE TRUSTEES

The act of the majority of the Trustees present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Trustees. A Trustee is considered "present" if attending the meeting in person or by electronic media.

Section 2-7. PUBLIC ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

Regular and special meetings of the Trustees shall be open to the public except for executive sessions which may be convened at any time by vote upon motion by any Trustee. Executive sessions shall be attended only by the Trustees and such persons as may be designated by the presiding officer or included in the motion. No actions shall be taken in executive sessions. Matters considered and discussed during executive sessions shall be confidential except as otherwise provided by law.

Article III. PROCEDURE AT MEETINGS

Section 3-1. QUORUM

A majority of the Trustees shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Any number less than a quorum present at a meeting duly called may adjourn from time to time until a quorum shall be in attendance.

Section 3-2. ORDER OF BUSINESS

The business at each regular or special meeting shall be conducted in the following manner, unless otherwise authorized by appropriate Trustees action.

Roll Call

Approval of Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes

Election of Officers (annual meeting or as necessary)

Reports

Public Testimony (scheduled during the regular meeting)

Committee of the Whole, Regular Business (Board Committee Reports)

Proposed Items for Action

New business

Date of Next Meeting

Adjournment

Section 3-3. RULES OF PROCEDURE

Meetings of the Trustees shall be conducted according to Robert's rules of parliamentary procedure except as modified by the Trustees. Each Trustee who is present shall vote on every question, unless excused from voting by the Trustees. The ayes and nays shall be called and entered upon request of any Trustee.

Section 3-4. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Minutes of proceedings of the Trustees and of their committees shall be kept by the secretary, or designee. Action of the Trustees which utilizes material presented by reports or other documents shall be presented in the minutes in such form as to include, when not impractical, the full text of the action so that reference to other reports and documents is not necessary in order to determine the exact meaning of the action taken.

Article IV. OFFICERS OF THE TRUSTEES

Section 4-1. NUMBER

The officers of the Trustees shall be a Chairman, a Vice Chairman, a Secretary, and a Treasurer, who shall be limited to the twelve appointed Trustees.

Section 4-2. ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE

The officers of the Trustees shall be elected annually at the annual meeting. Each officer shall hold office for one year or until his or her successor is elected and qualified. No Trustee shall be eligible for re-election as chairman immediately after having served two successive regular terms in that office.

Section 4-3. VACANCIES

In the event of a vacancy in any office of the Trustees, an election shall be held for the unexpired term at the next regular or special meeting of the Trustees.

Article V. DUTIES OF OFFICERS

Section 5-1. DETERMINATION OF DUTIES

The officers of the Trustees shall perform the duties expressly enjoined upon them by the laws of this State and by the Bylaws of the Trustees, and such other incidental duties as pertain to their respective offices, or as may be assigned from time to time by the Trustees or their Chairman.

Section 5-2. CHAIRMAN

The Chairman of the Trustees shall preside over all meetings of the Trustees; shall call the Trustees or Executive Committee in regular or special session at such times as the Chairman may deem advisable or necessary or at any time upon the petition of three or more Trustees; and the Chairman shall have authority to decide any disputes as to the application or meaning of these rules and Bylaws, but this decision shall be referred to the next regular or special meeting of the Trustees for final decision and adjudication by the Trustees. The Chairman of the Trustees shall have power to make temporary appointments to fill vacancies in the appointments of the Trustees to other boards or committees during the interval between Trustees meetings. The Chairman shall be an ex officio non-voting member of all permanent committees of the Trustees. The Chairman may sign, with the secretary or any other proper officer of the Trustees thereunto authorized by the Trustees, any deeds, mortgage, bonds, contracts, or other instruments which the Trustees have authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Trustees by resolution, by UW Regulation, or by these Bylaws to some other officer or agent of the Trustees, or shall be required by law to be otherwise signed or executed. The Chairman of the Trustees shall have the power to appoint ad-hoc committees as needed to address the business of the University. An ad-hoc committee is defined as an informal working group that can operate without formal board approval until completion of the committee's assigned task as determined by the Chairman.

Section 5-3. VICE CHAIRMAN

In the absence of the Chairman of the Trustees or in the event that the office becomes vacant, or of the chairman's inability or refusal to act, the Vice Chairman shall perform the duties of the Chairman.

Section 5-4. SECRETARY

The Secretary of the Trustees shall be sworn to the performance of his or her duties as provided by statute. The Secretary shall be responsible for the minutes of meetings of the Trustees; shall be custodian of the Trustees records and of the seal of the Trustees and see that the seal of the Trustees is affixed to all documents, the execution of which on behalf of the Trustees under its seal, is duly authorized; shall sign with the Chairman of the Trustees such instruments as the latter may execute; and shall be responsible for the supervision of duties delegated or assigned to the Deputy Secretary appointed by the Trustees.

In the event that the offices of Chairman and Vice Chairman become vacant or both refuse or are unwilling to act, the Secretary shall perform the duties of Chairman until the next regular or special meeting of the Trustees and preside at that meeting until the vacancy in the presidency is filled.

Section 5-5. TREASURER

The Treasurer shall cause an annual report to be prepared by the officers and employees of the University of Wyoming which shall show all receipts and disbursements; shall receive any monies, through the Deputy Treasurer, required by law to be paid to the Treasurer of the Trustees; and shall maintain general cognizance of fiscal and accounting procedures utilized by officers of the University of Wyoming designated by the Trustees to receive and disburse all monies.

In the event that the offices of Chairman, Vice Chairman and Secretary become vacant or all refuse or are unwilling to act, the Treasurer shall perform the duties of the Chairman until the next regular or special meeting of the Trustees and preside at the meeting of the Trustees until the vacancy in the chair position is filled.

Article VI. OTHER OFFICERS

Section 6-1. DEPUTY SECRETARY

At the discretion of the Trustees, the Deputy Secretary shall be appointed by the Trustees, and shall perform such duties as are delegated by the Secretary of the Trustees.

Section 6-2. DEPUTY TREASURER

The Deputy Treasurer shall be nominated by the President of the University, and at the discretion of the Trustees, shall be appointed by the Trustees, shall be an officer of the University of Wyoming whose duties include responsibility for the receipt, custody, and expenditure of all funds of the University of Wyoming not held by the State Treasurer, and shall exercise the same responsibility with respect to any funds or monies of the Trustees of the University of Wyoming.

Section 6-3. INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Internal Auditor shall be appointed by the Trustees, and shall perform such duties as the Trustees require.

Section 6-4. OTHER OFFICERS AND DUTIES

At the discretion of the Trustees, other officers may be appointed by the Trustees as may be deemed necessary. The duties of all officers of the Trustees shall be set forth in writing at the time of appointment or in appropriate UW Regulations.

Article VII. COMMITTEES OF THE TRUSTEES

Section 7-1. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee shall consist of five Trustees: the Chairman of the Trustees who shall serve as Chairman, the immediate past Chairman of the Trustees, if such person remains on the Board, the Vice Chairman of the Trustees, the Secretary of the Trustees, and the Treasurer of the Trustees. The Executive Committee shall have authority to meet with the University president to exchange information and discuss issues and to act for the Trustees in all routine business matters wherein immediate decisions and actions are deemed necessary for the present welfare of the University. All such actions of the Executive Committee shall be reported to the Trustees at their next regular or special meeting and ratified when appropriate, and shall be entered in full upon the minutes of such meeting of said Trustees.

Section 7-2. FISCAL AND LEGAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

The Fiscal and Legal Affairs Committee is responsible for assuring that the University's organizational culture, capabilities, systems and processes are appropriate to protect the financial health and the reputation of the University in all audit-related areas enumerated below. Specifically the Fiscal and Legal Affairs Committee will review the financial reporting processes, the system of internal controls, the audit process, and the process for monitoring and ensuring compliance with financial laws and regulations. It will monitor the University's internal and external auditor's findings.

In discharging their duties hereunder, the members of the Committee are entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, if prepared or presented by: officers or employees of the University whom the Committee members reasonably believe to be reliable and competent in the matters presented; and legal counsel, public accountants or other persons as to matters the Committee members reasonably believe are within the person's professional or expert competence.

I. Investments

Review the management of invested University funds, including University endowment funds and University operating funds, subject to the following conditions:

- a. The President of the University shall be the administrative officer of the invested University funds, and may assign to a designee such duties as may be described in a written delegation of authority.
- b. With Board approval, the Committee may employ the services of an agent, such as the University of Wyoming Foundation, an investment adviser, and/or manager(s), and may give due consideration to such advice.
- c. The Committee, or the Board-approved agent, shall place the securities of said Funds in custody of a custodian bank or other fully insured custodial institution, which shall have the right and privilege of holding the securities in a street name or in a name of such nominee as it may choose.
- d. Each year the Committee shall review the agent's investment policy, asset allocation strategy and other endowment management philosophies, such as earnings distribution policies. The Committee shall receive and review an annual report on portfolio performance and other relevant endowment management metrics.

II. Financial Reporting Process

- a. Ensure that the external auditors communicate all matters required by their professional standards to the Committee and review significant accounting and reporting issues, including recent professional and regulatory pronouncements in order to understand their impact on the University's financial statements.
- b. Review the annual financial statements, including management's discussion and analysis, and determine if they are complete and consistent with information known to committee members.

- c. Be satisfied that all regulatory compliance matters have been considered in the preparation of the financial statements.
- d. Review significant financial risks and exposures and the plans to minimize such risks.
- e. Review, with the University's legal counsel, any legal matters that could have a significant impact on the financial statements.

III. System of Internal Control

- a. Ensure that management is setting the appropriate tone in communicating the importance of internal control and ensure that individuals have an understanding of their roles and responsibilities.
- b. Receive and review reports from internal and external auditors regarding the quality of institutional internal control systems and determine whether management has implemented internal control recommendations made by internal and external auditors.
- c. Ensure that internal and external auditors keep the Committee informed about fraud, illegal acts, deficiencies in internal control and ensure that an appropriate process exists for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints, including anonymous complaints, regarding accounting, internal controls and auditing matters.
- d. Evaluate the extent to which internal and external auditors review computer systems and applications, the security of such systems and applications, and the contingency plan for processing financial information in the event of a systems breakdown.

IV. Audit Process – External

- a. Following appropriate consultation with management, recommend to the Board the selection and retention of the external audit firm. Approve external auditor's fees.
- b. Review and approve the external auditor's proposed scope and approach.
- c. Review and confirm the external auditor's assertion of their independence in accordance with professional standards.
- d. Review the performance of the external auditors and recommend the appointment or discharge of the external auditors.

- e. Ensure that, unless extenuating circumstances exist, an external auditor under contract with the University that bids on a new contract provides that the lead partner has not performed audit services beyond a total maximum of four years in an eight-year period.
- f. Strongly encourage, unless extenuating circumstances exist, that external auditors may only provide services for a total maximum of eight consecutive years. This limitation does not preclude an external auditor from bidding on or receiving a new contract after a break in service.
- g. Meet with the external auditors, the Internal Auditor, and management in separate executive sessions to discuss any matters that the Committee or these entities believe should be discussed privately. Mediate any disagreements between management and external auditors regarding financial reporting.
- h. Review with management and external auditors the results of the annual external audit, including any difficulties encountered, restrictions placed on the scope of the external auditor's activities, access to requested information and any significant disagreements with management.
- i. Review and approve any engagement of the external auditors for non-audit related consulting activities.

V. Audit Process – Internal

- a. Review and ensure that the University has the appropriate structure, staffing, and capability to effectively carry out the internal audit responsibilities.
- b. Review and concur in the appointment, compensation, replacement, reassignment, or dismissal of the Internal Auditor.
- c. Review and confirm the priorities and key action plans of the audit function. Receive and review internal audit reports from the Internal Auditor regarding results of the internal audit program.
- d. Ensure that audited divisions and colleges attend the Committee meetings to discuss audit findings and recommendations.
- e. Report each internal audit report from the Internal Auditor to the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees shall formally act on each internal audit report.

- f. Ensure there is regular, independent communication between the Committee and the Internal Auditor and ensure there are no unjustified restrictions or limitations on internal audit programs.
- g. Ensure there is flexibility when setting the Committee agenda based on concurrence between the Division of Administration and the Internal Auditor.

VI. Compliance with Laws & Regulations

- a. Review the findings of any significant examinations by financial regulatory agencies and review management's corrective action plans. Ensure that action plans are implemented to the satisfaction of the regulatory agencies.

VII. Other Responsibilities

- a. Ensure that significant findings and recommendations made by the internal and external auditors are received, discussed and acted upon in an appropriate and timely manner.
- b. Regularly update the Board of Trustees about Committee activities, any key internal or external audit issues and make appropriate recommendations for Board action.
- c. Review and update this By-Law and receive approval of changes from the Board of Trustees.

Section 7-3. BIENNIUM BUDGET COMMITTEE

The Biennium Budget Committee is responsible for working with University administration as it develops and submits the University's budget requests to the Governor as a state agency, including the 067 University of Wyoming operating budget, the 069 WICHE budget, the 167 Medical Education budget, and the Enhanced Oil Recovery Commission's 070 operating budget. It also includes funding requests related to capital facilities, as well as any other recommendations in the University's budget request that would be included in the state's appropriations bill for the biennium or in a supplemental budget request.

In discharging their duties hereunder, the members of the Committee shall work with the Vice President for Administration and the Vice President for Governmental and Community Affairs.

Section 7-4. FACILITIES CONTRACTING COMMITTEE

The Facilities Contracting Committee is responsible for working with University administration to develop and recommend modifications to the University's

facilities planning, contracting and construction policies and procedures. These recommendations will be presented to the full Board of Trustees for review and approval.

In discharging their duties hereunder, the members of the Committee shall work with the Vice President for Administration and the General Counsel.

Section 7-5. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND REPORTING COMMITTEE

REPEALED May 12, 2022

Section 7-6. HONORARY DEGREES AND AWARDS COMMITTEE

REPEALED May 12, 2022

Section 7-7. TRUSTEES LEGISLATIVE RELATIONS COMMITTEE

The Trustees' Legislative Relations Committee is responsible for working closely with the Governor's office and the legislative leadership to develop a consensus of priorities for the University.

In discharging their duties hereunder, the members of the Committee shall work with the Vice President for Government and Community Affairs and the Vice President for Administration.

Section 7-8. VICE PRESIDENT AND DEAN SEARCH COMMITTEE

REPEALED May 12, 2022

Section 7-9. ACADEMIC AND STUDENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

The Academic and Student Affairs Committee is responsible for (1) reviewing and making recommendations to the full Board regarding the University's academic mission, as well as policies and resources needed to realize that mission, execute UW's academic strategic priorities, ensure the quality and integrity of each of UW's academic programs, and to ensure the University remains focused on an excellent student experience whether it is on a UW Campus or at a distance; (2) reviewing and making recommendations to the full Board regarding policies, programming and services related to student engagement, wellness, development, and persistence; and (3) recommending to the Board of Trustees the awarding of both the Trustees' Award of Merit and Honorary Degrees.

The Trustees' Award of Merit was established in 1984 and recognizes individuals and groups who have rendered meritorious service or made exemplary contributions to the University. Nominations for the Trustees' Award of Merit

are submitted to the Academic and Student Affairs Committee, accepted on a continuous basis, and reviewed at regular intervals. There are no minimum or maximum number of awards given in any calendar year.

An Honorary Degree from the University recognizes individuals who embody the University's high ideals and who exemplify the values of excellence, service, and integrity. Honorary Degrees are among the highest honors a university can confer, and recognize a career of distinguished accomplishment in the professions, sciences, arts, humanities, public service, and service to humanity. Nominations for Honorary Degrees are submitted to the President of the University, who will refer them to a joint committee made up of the Academic and Student Affairs Committee and three faculty members appointed by the Faculty Senate. The joint committee will forward its recommendations to the Board of Trustees for final decision at its January meeting and announcement in the spring semester.

In discharging their duties hereunder, the members of the Committee shall work with the Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs and the Vice President for Student Affairs.

Section 7-10. RESEARCH AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

The Research and Economic Development Committee is responsible for working with University administration to review and make recommendations to the full Board regarding policies and procedures pertaining to research compliance, core facilities, pre-award management and indirect revenue distribution. The Committee is also responsible for working with University administration to enhance the University's Technology Transfer and Research Products Center, including reviewing and making recommendations to the full Board regarding policies and procedures pertaining to inventions and copyrightable materials, technologies available for licensing, technology startup ventures, and the protection, marketing, and ultimate transfer of intellectual property to industry. In addition, this committee is responsible for working with University administration in supporting entrepreneurial business ventures, and provides recommendations to the full Board on such matters, including those pertaining to the use of the University of Wyoming Research Corporation.

In discharging their duties hereunder, the members of the Committee shall work with the Vice President for Research and Economic Development.

Section 7-11. MEMBERS, TERM, AND COMMITTEE CHAIRMEN

Each Committee of the Trustees shall consist of not fewer than three Trustees. Appointments shall be made by the Chairman of the Board of Trustees at the May meeting of the Trustees, or as the Chairman deems necessary throughout the year, for terms of two years. Appointments to fill a vacancy for the unexpired term may be made by the Chairman of the Board at any time and announced at the next regular

Board meeting following the appointment. The Chairman of the Board of Trustees shall serve as an ex-officio member of all Trustees' Committees, may attend Committee meetings at his or her discretion, and may appoint a replacement for any Committees the Chairman served on prior to being elected.

At the May meeting, the Chairman of the Trustees shall appoint a chairman for each committee. The chairman shall hold office for one year or until his or her successor is appointed and qualified.

Article VIII. AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

These Bylaws may be changed or amended and additional Bylaws may be adopted at any regular meeting of the Trustees by a vote of two-thirds of the Trustees, provided that notice of the intention to change, amend, or add to the Bylaws, in whole or part, shall have been given in the notice of the meeting or shall have been given at a preceding meeting of the Trustees. Such notice shall be in writing and shall include the exact wording of the legislation proposed. The Bylaws, in whole or in part, may be suspended at any Board meeting only by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Trustees.

Article IX. UW REGULATIONS

Rules for the government of the University and all its branches shall be designated as "UW Regulations," which may be adopted, changed or amended at any regular or special meeting of the Trustees without prior formal notice. In order to have the status of a standing regulation, any intention to adopt, change or amend such Regulations must be presented as a formal motion for action by the Trustees.

Article X. PRESIDENT OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WYOMING

Section 10-1. APPOINTMENT

The President of the University of Wyoming shall be appointed by the Trustees, but no such appointment shall be made without nine affirmative votes of the Trustees. The initial term of office shall be for not less than one year, and the President shall thereafter continue in such office at the will of the majority of the Trustees, who, from time to time, shall fix his or her salary. It will be the policy of the Trustees to confer with an advisory committee from the University faculty and staff prior to the selection of a new President.

Section 10-2. DUTIES AND POWERS

The President of the University shall perform the duties expressly enjoined upon the President by the laws of this State, by these Bylaws, and such other incidental duties as pertain to his or her office or as may be assigned from time to time by the Trustees. As the executive head of the University of Wyoming, on behalf of the

Trustees the President shall be responsible for the custody of the books, records, buildings, and all other property of the University, and for the administration of the academic and business activities of the University in accordance with the directives, Bylaws and UW Regulations and shall be clothed with all authority requisite to these ends. The President shall inform and advise the Trustees with respect to the operations of the University and its relationships, and shall serve as an ex officio non-voting member of all permanent Trustees' committees.

Article XI. THE UNIVERSITY OF WYOMING

Pursuant to State Law establishing the University as an institution of learning under the name and style "The University of Wyoming," all authorized functions and business matters carried on by the officers, faculty and staff of the University in accordance with regulations and financial budgets of the Trustees shall be in the name of "The University of Wyoming."

Article XII. SEAL

The corporate seal of the Trustees of the University of Wyoming shall consist of a circular design on which is inscribed the words "The University of Wyoming - 1886 -" and in the center the word "Equality." It shall be affixed to all papers which may require it as authorized by the Secretary, the President of the University of Wyoming, or regulation or direction of the Trustees.

Article XIII. SERVING ON BOARDS

The Chairman of the Board of Trustees may appoint Trustees to the governing bodies of University related organizations.

Revisions adopted 5/13/2015 Board of Trustees meeting
Revisions adopted 11/18/2016 Board of Trustees meeting
Revisions adopted 5/10/2017 Board of Trustees meeting
Revisions adopted 5/9/2018 Board of Trustees meeting
Revisions adopted 9/14/2018 Board of Trustees meeting
Revisions adopted 11/15/2018 Board of Trustees meeting
Revisions adopted 6/12/2019 Board of Trustees meeting (effective 7/1/2019)
Revisions adopted 5/12/2022 Board of Trustees meeting



UW Board of Trustees Annual Schedule of Items to Approve, Discuss or Report

[Final Approval 06-14-2023]

January

Annual Reports/Presentations

- Division of Research and Economic Development
- Required discrimination and harassment, mandatory report, and bystander intervention training
- Sabbatical/professional leave report for previous fiscal year (per UW Regulation 2-16)
[information only; presentation by one faculty member]

Consideration and Action

- Emeritus faculty designations (per UW Regulation 2-1) [included in personnel report; no presentation]
- Financial Aid Plan for subsequent (year after next) fiscal year (per UW Regulation 7-11)
- UW Student Fee Book proposal for upcoming fiscal year (per UW Regulation 7-11)

Discussion

- Appointment of new Trustees
- Appointment of Trustee officer nomination committee
- Six-month budget v. actual of annual operating budget (action or follow up at March meeting if necessary)

Information Only (no presentation)

- Upcoming fiscal year Operating budget assumptions and timeline

Notice (for consideration/action at upcoming meeting)

- Annual UW Regulations housekeeping (as needed)

February

No scheduled topics for this month

March

Consideration and Action

- Appointments to the Trustees Education Initiative
- Tenure, Promotion, and 5-year Fixed Terms for faculty (per UW Regulation 2-7) [included in personnel report; no presentation]
- UW Business Enterprise Fee Book Proposal for upcoming fiscal year (per UW Regulation 7-11)

Discussion

- Annual UW Foundation fundraising priorities (per MOU with UW Foundation) [for approval in July]
- Legislative priorities (reported out of the Legislative Relations Committee)

Information Only (no presentation)

- Orientation materials: new Trustees member (when applicable)
- Spring enrollment census information

Notice (for consideration/action at upcoming meeting):

- Amendments to Trustee Bylaws (as necessary)
 - Revisions to Trustees Annual Schedule of Items to Approve, Discuss or Report
- Annual election of Board Officers to be effective May 1 of same year
- Recommendation of 3-year academic calendar from University Administration and Trustees Academic and Student Affairs Committee [Note: the Board reviews and approves a 3-year academic school year calendar (anniversary date of 2016)]

April

April 15th UW budget materials delivered to Trustee Biennium Budget Committee and Board of Trustees

May (Annual Meeting and Action on Annual Board Administrative Matters)

Annual Reports/Presentations

- Recognition: Incoming and outgoing ASUW President and Faculty Senate Chair

Consideration and Action

- 3-year academic calendar
- Amendments to Trustee Bylaws (as necessary)
 - Trustees Annual Schedule of Items to Approve, Discuss or Report
- Annual Internal Audit Plan (per Trustee Bylaws)
- Designate depositories for UW funds (WS. 21-17-426, WY Const. Art. 15, Section 7)
- Master list of academic programs (per UW regulation 2-119)
- Salary distribution policy for the next fiscal year (as necessary)
- Set the amount of the Deputy Treasurer's and Treasurer's bond and designate/set any other appropriate bonds (W.S. Sec. 21-17-203 (a)) (as necessary) [business meeting action item; no presentation]

Information (no presentation)

- Biennium/Supplemental budget timeline (information item; discussion in July and approval in August)

Board Annual Administrative Matters

- Trustees budget hearings (Monday-Tuesday prior to Board meeting)
- Designate Committee appointments and appoint committee chairs for following:
 - Fiscal and Legal Affairs (Sec 7-2 Bylaws)
 - Biennium Budget Committee (Sec 7-3 Bylaws)
 - Facilities Contracting Committee (Sec 7-4 Bylaws)
 - Academic and Student Affairs Committee (Sec 7-9 Bylaws)
 - Research and Economic Development Committee (Sec. 7-10 Bylaws)
- File Trustee conflict of interest disclosure statements in accordance with the policy
- First Trustee meeting conducted by Officers elected during preceding March meeting
 - Administer oath to Board Secretary (W.S. 21-17-206), notarize and file
- Other Trustee appointments:
 - Alumni Board
 - Cowboy Joe Club
 - Energy Resource Council
 - Enhanced Oil Recovery Commission (Governor Appointment)
 - Foundation Board
 - Governor's Science Task Force (Governor Appointment)

June

Consideration and Action: Annual operating budget for next fiscal year (per UW Regulation 7-1)

July (Out-of Town Meeting: Planning and Strategy Retreat & Meeting with Legislators)

Annual Reports/Presentations

- Faculty Athletic Representative (FAR) [information only; no presentation – follow up at September meeting if necessary]

Consideration and Action

- Annual UW Foundation fundraising priorities (per MOU with UW Foundation)
- Next cycle of planning initiatives
- Trustee Meeting Schedule for following two calendar years

Discussion/information

- Biennium/supplemental budget (for approval in August)
- Tuition including preliminary administrative recommendations for subsequent (year after next) fiscal year (per UW Regulation 7-11)
 - If changes recommended, University President's Office will seek public input (for presentation at September meeting)

Business Meeting (as necessary)

August

Consideration and Action

- Biennium/supplemental budget

September

Annual Reports/Presentations

- Balances, transactions and investment returns for the following Trustee reserve accounts (per Trustee Directive) [information only; no presentation]
 - Passenger Plane Reserve Account
 - Risk Pool/Litigation Reserve Account
 - Residence Hall Reserve Account
 - Recruitment and Retention Reserve Account
 - Special Project Reserve Account
 - Operating Reserve Account
 - Construction Reserve Account
- Expenditures Marian H. Rochelle Gateway Center Facilities Maintenance Fund (per lease agreement with UW Foundation) [information only; no presentation]
- Faculty appointments (per UW Regulation 2-1) [information only; no presentation]
- Intercollegiate Athletics (Athletic Director)
 - Faculty Athletic Representative (FAR) (attends as necessary)
- List of deleted and new courses (per UW Regulation 2-119) [information only; no presentation]
- New Temporarily Restricted Endowment accounts established during the past year (per Trustee Directive) [information only; no presentation]
- Office of Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion
- Recognition: Incoming and Outgoing Staff Senate President
- Status of implementation of the Strategic Plan and President's Report on Accomplishments
- UW Foundation Investments (per MOU with Foundation) [information only; no presentation]

Consideration/action

- Emeritus Faculty Designations [included in personnel report; no presentation]
- Recruitment and marketing outcomes
 - Including Fall enrollment census information
- Approval and adoption of final tuition recommendations for subsequent (year after next) fiscal year (per UW Regulation 7-11)
- Review of Tuition Policy [Note: the Board reviews and approves a tuition policy every 4 years (anniversary date of 2018)]

October

No scheduled topics for this month

November

Annual Reports/Presentations

- Faculty workload (per UW Regulation 2-9) [information only; no presentation]
- Family Medicine Residency Program – College of Health Sciences (required for accreditation) [information only; no presentation]
- Fiscal Year Carry forward Report (per UW Regulation 7-10) [information only; no presentation]
- Science Initiative
- Spending from the Student Athlete Achievement Success Scholarship Expendable Fund and the following funds managed by UW Foundation as an Endowment: Research Excellence and Student Success Reserve Accounts; Recruitment and Retention Reserve Account
- Tier I Engineering
- Trustees Education Initiative

Consideration and Action

- Annual external audited financial report (per Trustee Bylaws)

Discussion

- Financial Aid Plan: review structure and financial aid awarding strategy for subsequent (year after next) fiscal year (for approval in January) (per UW Regulation 7-11)
- Legislative priorities (reported out of the Legislative Relations Committee)
- UW Student and Business Enterprise Fee Book proposals for upcoming fiscal year (for approval in January and March)

December

No scheduled topics for this month

Recurring and As Needed Items:

Consideration and Action: Approval of agreements, contracts, and procurements (per UW Regulation 7-2)

Personnel: Appointment of academic and non-academic employees

Open discussion from any Trustees

Information Items (no action, discussion or work session)

Capital Construction Report

Contracts and Procurement Report (per UW Regulation 7-2)

Foundation Monthly Giving Report

Annual Schedule of Events

January

- Reception honoring excellence in research and innovation [hosted by President and Division of Research and Economic Development]

March

- Lunch with Staff Senate & Trustees [hosted by Trustees]

May

- President's Commencement Dinner [hosted by UW President]

July (out-of-town meeting)

- Reception and Dinner with Trustees and Legislators [hosted by Trustees]
- Community Event with Alumni and Friends [hosted by Trustees]

September

- Lunch with Faculty Senate & Trustees [hosted by Trustees]
- Faculty Dinner honoring newly tenured, promoted and extended term and newly appointed faculty and academic professionals [hosted by UW President and Provost]

November

- Annual Trustees Scholarship Dinner [hosted by Trustees]
- Lunch with ASUW & Trustees [hosted by Trustees]
- Joint meeting with the Energy Resource Council (confirmed on an annual basis) [hosted/coordinated by SER]

University President's Employment Contract

Timely scheduling of review and evaluation of President's performance to satisfy employment contract terms